



INTERNATIONAL FENCING FEDERATION (FIE)

MINUTES COACHING COUNCIL MEETING

- **DATE:** 16 - 17 JUNE 2014
- **Venue:** HOTEL DE LA PAIX, Lausanne
- **TIME:** 9H 00 – 18 H 00

1. WELCOME

The President of Coaching Council welcomes everybody at the third FIE Coaches Council meeting. The agenda for the meeting was circulated. **G. Tyshler** gave short report on the year of work of the coaching council:

The Council had 2 meetings during the year, this is our third meeting. Some members of the council took part in the work of several FIE committees, refereeing committee, wireless contest committee, FIE committee on proposals, Olympic solidarity program. Urgent opinions of the Council were requested by FIE on several matters during the year. Coaching council has the website – www.fencingtrainer.com . Minutes of the meetings, contact information, articles, and other information are published on the website (website needs to be improved with more articles, publications, discussions, methodical materials). Several tests on rules changes were conducted by the Council members (E. Korfanty, G. Tyshler, and S. Pozdnyakov). Report – Presentation on the sabre proposals was made to FIE COMEX. The work of the council should be improved, but in general our work is appreciated and valued by the fencing community.

Dr. Zidaru mentioned that different FIE bodies are asking for our input and taking in consideration our opinion. We are new structure and this is very important for us.

S. Pozdnyakov thanked the council for quick respond on the urgent opinion concerning the dates of the World Championship in Moscow.

E. Korfanty and **Dr. Zidary** commented that the dates for Zonal competitions and World championships should be better coordinated.

1.2 ATTENDANCE REGISTER

Present:

PIETRUSZKA Frederic – FIE General Secretary was present on the second day of the meeting

POZDNYAKOV Stanislav – RUS, Executive Committee Member, Executive Committee Representative/ Coaches

JIE AO - Deputy Sport Director FIE

KORFANTY Edward – USA

TYSHLER Gennady – RSA

ZIDARU Octavian-Petru – ROU

PAVLOVITCH Vladislav – RUS

OUEDRAOGO Julien – BUR

Apologies:

SAUCEDO Guillermo Jorge – ARG

BOIDIN Franck – FRA

SZEPESI Laszlo – HUN

WANG Haibin – CHN

CIPRESSA Andrea – ITA

1.3 MINUTES

The minutes of the council meeting in Budapest were circulated and approved via email.

2. PROPOSALS FOR THE 2014 CONGRESS

PROPOSALS FOR THE 2014 CONGRESS WITH COACHING COUNCIL COMMENTS DOCUMENT ATTACHED.

SPECIAL COMMENT

Coaches think that canceling the Cadet World Championship will have big negative effect on all fencing. Many reasons were stated during the discussion. (MOTIVATION FOR YOUNG FENCERS, EASIER TO WIN FOR DEVELOPING COUNTRIES, MOTIVATING THE REGIONS, WILL NOT SOLVE THE MAIN PROBLEM WITH FUNDING THE JUNIOR WC), As all members understand the reason of this proposal, another solution should be found to address the problem. (Having Cadet World Championship separately in a different time and place, to reorganize the program, cancel Junior team championship, etc)

3. COMMITTEE MEMBERS RESPONSIBILITIES, SUBCOMMITTEES REPORTS

appointed members responsible for Continental matters

Mr. H. Wang - Asia, Oceania

Mr.E. Korfanty – North America

Mr. G.J. Sausedo – South America

Mr. J. Ouedraogo – Africa

Dr. O-P.Zidaru - Europe

appointed members responsible for fencing disciplines matters

Foil – F. Boidin

Epee – Dr. O-P. Zidaru

Sabre – E. Korfanty

Responsible for coaching academies, seminars – Dr. L. Sepesi

Responsible for legal matters, Web. Site, methodical materials, coaches journal – Dr. G. Tyshler

Liaison with refereeing committee – E. Korfanty

Liaison with SEMI – V. Pavlovitch

Liaison with Rules committee – E.Korfanty, Dr. O-P. Zidary, F. Boidin

- **Short reports by the members of the council present were given**

4. SABRE FENCING MODIFICATIONS PRESENTATION

test on the rules changing, proposals to improve sabre fencing image and understanding.

Location: International Exhibition Center, the official pistes for Junior World Championship, Plovdiv, Bulgaria.

Participants: seven junior athletes, members of the FIE training camp, participants of the World Championship, N. Kovalev, member of FIE Athletes commission.

Date: April 2, 2014

Time: 10.00-13.00

Organizers: S. Pozdnyakov, 10 time world champion, four time Olympic champion, sabre, Member of the FIE Executive Committee. Dr. G. Tyshler, coached six world champions in sabre, President of FIE Coaching Council

Observer - participant: N. Kovalev, 3 times world champion, prize winner of the Olympic Games, sabre, Member of the FIE Athletes Commission.

- **10 minutes power point presentation was discussed.**

Decision: More tests should be conducted. The next tests for this proposals and proposal of E. Korfanty will be conducted during the World championship in KAZAN.

4. PROPOSALS FROM MR. PIETRUSZKA

Mr. Pietruszka has presented to coaching council:

- Fencing calendar and competition formula for the following years. The system presented, have been discussed during the meeting. No particular decisions were taken.
- It was proposed to investigate possibility of canceling “non valid” hit (white light) in foil.

The proposals to include the top part of the arm to the target area and possibly the mask, or part of the mask were made by different members.

5. COACHING CONFERENCE

Dr. G. Tyshler has reported that he had a meeting with the head of the Russian state academy of the physical education in Moscow. Dr. A. Bleer supported the idea of having the conference on the base of University in Moscow. As the next World championship will be in Moscow next year, it will be good to have this event few days before the championship.

The Coaching council feel that it is a good initiative and looking forward to this event. The conference should be well prepared. The organizing committee should be established. G. Tyshler will follow this up with Dr. Bleer and will report to the Council.

CONCLUSION

Dr. G. Tyshler thanked everybody for the work done. Draught of the minutes will be circulated by the president to all members for comments. The date for the next meeting will be announced.

Meeting closed.

**PROPOSITIONS DE MODIFICATIONS DU REGLEMENT
PROPOSALS FOR THE AMENDMENT OF THE RULES
PROPUESTAS DE MODIFICACIONES DEL REGLAMENTO**

CONGRES – CONGRESS – CONGRESO – 2014

*Soumises au Conseil des entraîneurs
Submitted to the Coaches Council
Sométicas al Consejo de los Entrenadores*

**Propositions du Comité Exécutif
Proposals of the Executive Committee
Propuestas del Comité Ejecutivo**

Proposition 1

FRA

Motivation : Si la proposition concernant les Championnats du Monde cadets est votée par le Congrès, il est nécessaire de :

1) Supprimer la référence aux championnats du monde Cadets dans les articles suivants :

Règlement d'Organisation :

o.4, o.34, o.35. o.48, o.71 (titre et article), index alphabétique. Table des matières

Règlement Technique :

t.42.3 iv), t.45.4 b)

2) Supprimer les articles suivants:

o.39, o.55.2.

3) Ajouter au chapitre Introduction du Règlement de la FIE :

i.5 Les Championnats du Monde

i.5.4 Suite aux décisions prises par le Congrès tenu à Rome (2014) les Championnats du Monde cadets qui comprennent des épreuves individuelles masculines et féminines au fleuret, à l'épée et au sabre ne sont plus organisés par la FIE.

4) Supprimer la référence aux championnats du monde Cadets dans le Règlement administratif :

Chapitre 2, préambule, 2.2, 5.1.3.7

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

Proposal 1

ANG

Motivation: If the proposal concerning the Cadet World Championships is ratified by the Congress, it would be necessary to:

2) Remove references to the Cadet World Championships in the following articles:

Organisation Rules:

o.4, o.34, o.35. o.48, o.71 (title and article), alphabetical index. Table of contents

Technical Rules:

t.42.3 iv), t.45.4 b)

2) Remove the following articles:

o.39, o.55.2.

3) Add the following to the introduction chapter of the FIE Rulebook:

i.5 World Championships

i.5.4 Pursuant to the decisions taken by the Rome Congress (2014), the Cadet World Championships – consisting of individual men's and women's events in foil, épée and sabre – will no longer be organised by the FIE.

4) Remove references to the Cadet World Championships in the Administrative Rules:

Chapter 2, preamble, 2.2, 5.1.3.7

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

NOT IN FAVOR

Coaches think that canceling the Cadet World Championship will have big negative effect on all fencing. Many reasons were stated during the discussion. As all understand the reason of this proposal, another solution should be found to address the problem. (Having Cadet World Championship separately in a different time and place, cancel Junior team championship, etc)

Les propositions suivantes concernent une modification des Statuts

The below proposals concern an amendment of the Statutes

Proposition 1

FRA

Motivation : Pour rendre les Championnats du Monde plus faciles à organiser et plus courts, et pour trouver plus facilement des organisateurs. En effet, l'organisation des Championnats du Monde cadets et juniors est trop lourde, trop longue et la FIE ne trouve plus d'organisateur, ou alors seulement un seul organisateur à la dernière minute. Par ailleurs, la FIE n'a pas d'épreuves de Coupe du Monde cadets, alors que les confédérations, ou certaines confédérations, ont des circuits cadets ouverts à toutes les fédérations.

1.1 MISSION

La F.I.E. a pour objet :

d) d'organiser les Championnats du Monde **seniors**, ainsi que les Championnats du Monde juniors,

cadets et vétérans ;

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

Proposal 1

ANG

Motivation: In order to make the World Championships easier to organise, of a shorter duration and to help to find organisers. Actually, the organisation of the junior and cadet World championships is too heavy and the FIE does not find organisers, or only one organizer at the last minute. Besides, the FIE does not have any Cadet World Cups, while confederations, or some confederations, have cadet circuits opened to all the federations.

1.2 MISSION

The Aims of the F.I.E. are:

d) to organise the ~~Open~~ Senior World Championships, as well as Junior, ~~Cadet~~ and Veteran World Championships;

Opinion of the Coaches Council

NOT IN FAVOR

Proposition 17

FRA

Motivation : Pour harmoniser avec les articles relatifs aux commissions et aux conseils.

5.5.3

Le Comité Exécutif donne les grandes lignes des travaux ~~des Commissions et~~ des Congrès ~~et supervise les travaux des commissions~~. A cet effet, il s'efforcera de s'informer, par tous les moyens possibles, sur les vues, les tendances et les desiderata des groupements affiliés.

Il fixe les lieux et les dates des ~~réunions des Congrès, Commissions et Conseils~~.

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

Proposal 17

ANG

Motivation : To be in line with articles on Commissions and Councils.

5.5.3

The Executive Committee outlines the work of ~~the Commissions and~~ the Congresses and ~~monitors the work of the Commissions~~. To this end, it has to gather information by every possible means on the views, tendencies, and desires of the affiliated groups.

It decides the date and the place of ~~the meetings of Congresses, commissions and councils~~.

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

IN FAVOR

Proposition 32

FRA

Motivation : Clarification de la règle actuelle.

6A.1 LES CONSEILS

Les conseils de la FIE sont des entités techniques. Le Comité exécutif consulte les conseils à propos de toutes les questions nécessaires

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

Proposal 32

ANG

Motivation : Clarification of the current rule.

6 A.1 THE COUNCILS

FIE Councils are technical bodies. The Executive committee consults the Councils about all necessary issues.

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

IN FAVOR

Proposition 33

FRA

Motivation : Afin de clarifier les responsabilités des membres du Comité exécutif délégués dans les conseils, et également d'ouvrir les réunions aux experts qui proposent leurs services à la FIE.

6A.2.3

Le Comité Exécutif délègue un de ses membres dans chaque Conseil afin de surveiller d'établir le lien

~~entre eux~~ et de coordonner les travaux des Conseils. (cf. 5.5.7).

Le Président de la FIE peut, ~~avec l'accord du Comité Exécutif et~~ après consultation du ~~Président de la Commission~~ Secrétaire général et de la CEO, avoir des experts appropriés impliqués dans les travaux des conseils.

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

Proposal 33

ANG

Motivation : In order to clarify the responsibility of the members of the Executive Committee delegated in Councils and also to open the meetings to experts who propose their services to the FIE.

6A.2.3

The Executive Committee will delegate one of its members to be responsible to ~~h~~aise monitor and coordinate the work of each of the Councils (cf. 5.5.4).

The President of the FIE may, ~~as agreed with the Executive Committee and~~ after consultation with the ~~President of the Commission~~ Secretary General and CEO, have relevant experts involved in the councils' work.

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

IN FAVOR

Proposition 34

FRA

Motivation : Même Motivation que pour les commissions, et afin de clarifier les règles relatives aux dépenses.

6A.4.3

Les conseils doivent admettre à leurs réunions les auteurs (ou leur représentant) des propositions présentées et inscrites à l'ordre du jour du Congrès par le Comité Exécutif de la FIE. Cette présence de l'auteur ou de son représentant est limitée à la discussion de ladite proposition. ~~Les dépenses relatives à cette participation sont à la charge des personnes responsables des propositions, ou de leurs représentants. Les conseils doivent aussi admettre à leurs réunions toute personne désignée par le Président de la FIE.~~

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

Proposal 34

ANG

Motivation : Same motivation as for Commissions and in order to clarify the rules regarding the expenses.

6A.4.3

Councils must admit to their meetings the persons, or their representatives, responsible for the proposals submitted to the Congress and placed on its agenda by the Executive Committee of the FIE. The attendance of such a person, or his representative, is restricted to the time when that proposal in question is being discussed. The expense for such attendance is borne by the persons, or their representatives, responsible for the proposals,
Councils must also admit to their meetings any person designated by the President of the FIE.

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

IN FAVOR

Proposition 37

FRA

Motivation : Conséquence de la proposition 1 et même motivation.

10.2.2

Participation aux Championnats du Monde

Une fédération qui n'est pas à jour de ses obligations financières envers la FIE la veille à midi de l'ouverture d'un Championnat du Monde (~~cadet~~, junior, senior et vétérans) ne peut pas participer à ce Championnat du Monde, sauf en cas de dérogation motivée accordée par le Comité Exécutif.

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

Proposal 37

ANG

Motivation : Consequence of proposal 1 and same motivation.

10.2.2

Participation in a World Championship

A member federation which is not up to date with its financial obligations towards the FIE at midday the day before the opening of a ~~Cadet~~, Junior, Senior or Veteran World Championship may not participate in this World Championship, unless exception is justified and granted by the Executive Committee.

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

NOT IN FAVOR

Motivation : Pour utiliser la même terminologie.

10.3

LES CHAMPIONNATS DU MONDE SENIORS

10.3.1 Règlements généraux

Des championnats officiels dénommés "Championnats du Monde seniors" sont disputés annuellement, entre le 15 juillet et le 15 août, sous les auspices de la F.I.E.

Remplacer "Championnats du Monde" par "Championnats du Monde seniors" dans 10.3.2, 10.3.3, et 10.3.4

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

Motivation : In order to use the same terminology.

10.3

THE ~~OPEN~~ SENIOR WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS

10.3.1 General Rules

The official championships called "**Senior** World Championships" are held annually, between July 15th and August 15th, under the auspices of the F.I.E.

Replace "Open" by "Senior" in 10.3.2, 10.3.3, 10.3.4

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

IN FAVOR

Motivation : Conséquence de la proposition 1 et même motivation.

10.4 LES CHAMPIONNATS DU MONDE JUNIORS ~~ET CADETS~~

10.4.1 Règlements généraux

Sont disputés annuellement ~~ensemble~~ sous les auspices de la F.I.E. des Championnats du Monde juniors ~~et cadets~~ comprenant à chaque catégorie d'âge des épreuves individuelles au fleuret, à l'épée et au sabre masculins et féminins. Une épreuve par équipes, suivant les mêmes principes qu'aux Championnats du monde ~~seniors~~, sera disputée en catégorie junior.

Les Championnats du Monde juniors ~~et cadets~~ se déroulent chaque année au cours des deux premières semaines d'avril, sous l'autorité de la F.I.E.

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

Proposal 39

ANG

Motivation : Consequence of proposal 1 and following and same motivation.

10.4 JUNIOR ~~AND CADET~~ WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS

10.4.1 General Rules

The World Junior Championship ~~and World Cadet Championships are~~ is to be held ~~together~~ annually under the auspices of the F.I.E., comprising individual competitions at men's and women's foil, épée and sabre. A team event under the same principles as for the ~~Open Senior~~ World Championships shall be held for the Juniors.

The Junior ~~and Cadet~~ World Championships are held every year, during the first two weeks of April, under the auspices of the FIE.

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

NOT IN FAVOR

Propositions reportées en 2013
Proposals postponed in 2013
Propuestas trasladadas en 2013

Propositions reportées de la Fédération Hongroise d'Esgrime
Hungarian Fencing Federation postponed Proposals
Propuestas aplazadas de la Federación Húngara de Esgrima

Proposition 1

FRA

Motivation : *Il s'agit juste d'une clarification de la règle existante, à savoir que le tireur ne devrait être pénalisé d'un mètre que s'il franchit la limite latérale de la piste des deux pieds.*

t. 17.9

La remise en garde, à la distance, pour **sortie latérale des deux pieds**, peut placer le combattant fautif au-delà de la ligne arrière et entraîner une touche.

Avis du groupe de travail (Commissions des Règlements, de l'arbitrage, Promotion, Conseil des entraîneurs) en charge de la révision des propositions reportées en 2013 : Favorable si modifié comme suit :

La remise en garde, à la distance, pour sortie latérale de la piste **d'un ou des deux pieds** peut placer le combattant fautif au-delà de la ligne arrière et entraîner une touche.

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

Proposal 1

ANG

Motivation: *This is only to clarify the existing rule, ie. the fencer should only be penalised by stepping back one meter in case the fencer crosses the lateral boundaries of the piste with both feet.*

t. 17.9

If a fencer has crossed the **lateral boundaries of the piste with both feet**, he may be put back on guard at the correct distance even if this places him behind the rear line and thereby causes a hit to be awarded against him.

Opinion of the working group (Rules, Refereeing, Promotion Commissions, Coaches Council) charge of the review of the proposals postponed in 2013 : In favour if modified as follows:

If a fencer has crossed the lateral boundaries of the piste **with one or two feet**, he may be put back on guard at the correct distance even if this places him behind the rear line and thereby causes a hit to be awarded against him

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

IN FAVOR

Proposition 2

FRA

Motivation : *Il s'agit juste d'une clarification de la règle existante, à savoir que le tireur ne devrait être pénalisé d'un mètre que s'il franchit la limite latérale de la piste des deux pieds.*

t.28.1

Si un tireur franchit une limite latérale **des deux pieds**, il recule d'un mètre à partir du point de sortie et s'il sort pendant qu'il attaque il doit revenir à la place où il a commencé son attaque puis reculer encore d'un mètre (mais cf t.29).

Avis du groupe de travail (Commissions des Règlements, de l'arbitrage, Promotion, Conseil des entraîneurs) en charge de la révision des propositions reportées en 2013 : Favorable si modifié comme suit :

Si un tireur franchit une limite latérale **d'un ou des deux pieds**, il recule d'un mètre à partir du point de sortie et s'il sort pendant qu'il attaque il doit revenir à la place où il a commencé son attaque puis reculer encore d'un mètre (mais cf t.29).

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

Proposal 2

ANG

Motivation: *This is only to clarify the existing rule, ie. the fencer should only be penalised by stepping back one meter in case the fencer crosses the lateral boundaries of the piste with both feet.*

t.28.1

If a competitor crosses one of the lateral boundaries of the piste **with both feet**, he must step back one metre from the point where he left the piste; and if he goes off the piste during an attack he must return to the position he occupied when he started his attack and then step back a further metre (but cf t.29).

Opinion of the working group (Rules, Refereeing, Promotion Commissions, Coaches Council) charge of the review of the proposals postponed in 2013 : In favour if modified as follows:

If a competitor crosses one of the lateral boundaries of the piste **with one or two feet**, he must step back one metre from the point where he left the piste; and if he goes off the piste during an attack he must return to the position he occupied when he started his attack and then step back a further metre (but cf t.29).

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

IN FAVOR

Proposition 3

FRA

Motivation : *Il s'agit juste d'une clarification de la règle existante, à savoir que le tireur ne devrait être pénalisé d'un mètre que s'il franchit la limite latérale de la piste des deux pieds.*

t.102

Si un tireur franchit une limite latérale **des deux pieds**, il recule d'un mètre à partir du point de sortie et s'il sort pendant qu'il attaque il doit revenir à la place où il a commencé son attaque puis reculer encore d'un mètre.

Avis du groupe de travail (Commissions des Règlements, de l'arbitrage, Promotion, Conseil des entraîneurs) en charge de la révision des propositions reportées en 2013 :
Favorable si modifié comme suit :

Si un tireur franchit une limite latérale **d'un ou des deux pieds** il recule d'un mètre à partir du point de sortie et s'il sort pendant qu'il attaque il doit revenir à la place où il a commencé son attaque puis reculer encore d'un mètre.

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

Proposal 3

ANG

Motivation: *This is only to clarify the existing rule, ie. the fencer should only be penalised by stepping back one meter in case the fencer crosses the lateral boundaries of the piste with both feet.*

t.102

If a competitor crosses one of the lateral boundaries of the piste **with both feet**, he must step back one metre from the point where he left the piste; and if he goes off the piste during an attack he must return to the position he occupied when he started his attack and then step back a further metre.

Opinion of the working group (Rules, Refereeing, Promotion Commissions, Coaches Council) charge of the review of the proposals postponed in 2013: In favour if modified as follows:

If a competitor crosses one of the lateral boundaries of the piste **with one or two feet**, he must step back one metre from the point where he left the piste; and if he goes off the piste during an attack he must return to the position he occupied when he started his attack and then step back a further metre.

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

IN FAVOR

Propositions reportées de la Fédération russe d'escrime
Russian Fencing Federation postponed Proposals
Propuestas aplazadas de la Federación de Esgrima de Rusia

Proposition 4

FRA

Motivation : *Une plus grande variation des substitutions pendant une rencontre par équipes, permettant de plus nombreuses tactiques de la part des entraîneurs par rapport au règlement précédent, rehaussera grandement l'intérêt des spectateurs pour ce qui se passe sur la piste.*

o.44.10

- a) Au cours d'une rencontre, le capitaine d'une équipe peut demander le **remplacement** d'un tireur par le tireur remplaçant nommément désigné avant le début de la rencontre. Cette substitution ne pourra se faire qu'après la fin d'un relais. ~~Le tireur remplacé ne pourra plus revenir pendant cette rencontre, même en cas d'accident ou en cas de force majeure, pour remplacer un tireur en piste.~~ Le tireur remplacé pourra revenir en piste une autre fois pendant cette rencontre pour remplacer un tireur, sauf quand le premier remplacement a été effectué pour des raisons médicales. **L'annonce du changement** d'un équipier, qui doit être notifié par l'arbitre au Directoire technique et au capitaine de l'équipe adverse, devra se faire **avant le début du relais précédant le prochain relais du tireur remplacé.**

Avis du groupe de travail (Commissions des Règlements, de l'arbitrage, Promotion, Conseil des entraîneurs) en charge de la révision des propositions reportées en 2013 :

Accorder plus de flexibilité permettra de réduire le risque qu'une équipe doive se retirer pour cause de blessure et d'élargir un peu les possibilités de décisions tactiques pour le capitaine de l'équipe. Dans le même temps, il n'a pas été jugé souhaitable que deux tireurs se rencontrent l'un l'autre dans deux relais au cours du même match par équipe. **Favorable si modifié comme suit :**

Au cours d'une rencontre, le capitaine d'une équipe peut demander le remplacement d'un tireur par le tireur remplaçant nommément désigné avant le début de la rencontre. Cette substitution ne pourra se faire qu'après la fin d'un relais. **Le tireur qui a été remplacé pourra tirer encore une fois pendant cette rencontre, mais seulement afin de substituer le remplaçant, sauf si le premier remplacement a été effectué pour des raisons prévues à l'article o.44.11. Aucun autre remplacement ne sera autorisé,** ~~Le tireur remplacé ne pourra plus revenir pendant cette rencontre,~~ même en cas d'accident ou en cas de force majeure. L'annonce du changement d'un équipier, qui doit être notifié par l'arbitre au Directoire technique et au capitaine de l'équipe adverse, devra se faire avant le début du relais précédant le prochain relais du tireur remplacé.

NB: Le groupe de travail a fait la remarque que si ce changement était accepté, il ne serait pas applicable aux Jeux Olympiques.

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

Motivation: *The bigger variation of replacements during the team match, tactical play of coaches in comparison with previous rules will greatly enhance the interest of spectators in the events taking place on the piste.*

o.44.10

a) In the course of a match the captain of a team may ask to **substitute** for a fencer the reserve nominated before the start of the match. This substitution may only be made at the end of a bout. ~~The fencer who has been replaced may not fence again during that match in order to replace a fencer on the piste, even in the case of an accident or unavoidable circumstances.~~ The replaced fencer has the right to fence one more time during the current team match in order to replace a fencer, except when the first replacement has been done for medical reasons. **The announcement** that a fencer is to be substituted, which must be reported by the Referee to the Directoire Technique and to the opposing team captain, must be made at the latest **before the beginning of the bout preceding the next bout of the fencer who is to be replaced.**

Opinion of the working group (Rules, Refereeing, Promotion Commissions, Coaches Council) charge of the review of the proposals postponed in 2013:

To allow more flexibility will reduce the risk that a team has to withdraw because of injury and also give some more room for tactical decisions for the team captain. At the same time, it was not considered desirable that two fencers could fence two relays against each other during the same team match.

In favour if modified as follows:

In the course of a match the captain of a team may ask to substitute for a fencer the reserve nominated before the start of the match. This substitution may only be made at the end of a bout. **However, the fencer who has been replaced may fence one more time during that match, but only to replace the substitute fencer, except when the first replacement has been done for the reasons listed in article o.44.11. No further substitution is allowed,** ~~The fencer who has been replaced may not fence again during that match in order to replace a fencer on the piste,~~ even in the case of an accident or unavoidable circumstances. The announcement that a fencer is to be substituted, which must be reported by the Referee to the Directoire Technique and to the opposing team captain, must be made at the latest before the beginning of the bout preceding the next bout of the fencer who is to be replaced.

NB: The working group remarked that if accepted, this change would not be applicable in the Olympic Games.

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

IN FAVOR

Propositions reportées de la Fédération américaine d'escrime
US Fencing Federation postponed Proposals
Propuestas aplazadas de la Federación de Esgrima de Estados Unidos

Proposition 1

FRA

Proposition de modification du Règlement pour les épreuves régissant la « passe avant » au sabre (article t.75.5)

Motivation : *La règle en vigueur a occasionné un nombre croissant de difficultés pour les escrimeurs, les arbitres, les entraîneurs ainsi que les spectateurs. Cette règle n'est pas suffisamment claire pour permettre à l'arbitre de déterminer quand il y a eu dépassement ; la limite au-delà de laquelle il y a faute étant délicate à apprécier avec exactitude. Le problème se pose davantage lors de la visualisation des enregistrements vidéo car la position fixe de la caméra offre une perspective faussée ; il est encore plus difficile de déterminer la position relative du talon du pied arrière ainsi que des orteils du pied avant. Par conséquent, face à cette confusion, le dépassement ou non de pied lors d'actions fait l'objet de nombreux désaccords, de plus en plus fréquents, et le recours aux enregistrements vidéo ne s'avère pas aussi efficace qu'il devrait l'être pour résoudre ces désaccords.*

La règle en vigueur stipule qu'il y a dépassement lors d'un mouvement vers l'avant lorsque « le pied arrière dépasse complètement le pied avant ». Cela signifierait qu'il y a dépassement lorsque le talon du pied arrière dépasse le bout des orteils du pied avant. Mais lorsque cela se produit, la partie inférieure des jambes ainsi que les chevilles sont déjà passées l'une devant l'autre, et un petit pas, même infime, est alors possible. En effet, l'escrimeur peut, en effectuant de petits pas, avancer sur la piste sans enfreindre la règle. Le changement proposé a pour but de remédier à ces problèmes.

La règle en vigueur est également difficile à appliquer pour l'arbitre lorsqu'il est dans le feu de l'action car il lui est difficile de déterminer à quel moment précis le talon du pied arrière dépasse les orteils du pied avant. La formulation proposée stipule qu'un dépassement a lieu lorsque le talon du pied arrière dépasse le talon du pied avant. Cet alignement des parties du corps devrait être plus facile à observer pour l'arbitre, que ce soit en direct durant l'action ou lors de la visualisation de l'enregistrement vidéo, et facilite également l'application de la règle.

Résumé: *Le changement proposé vise à réduire les ambiguïtés quant à un éventuel dépassement interdit du pied au sabre, en déterminant de façon précise la limite au-delà de laquelle il y a dépassement.*

ARTICLE t.75.5 EN VIGUEUR :

5. La **passé avant**, la **flèche** et tout mouvement **vers l'avant du pied arrière qui dépasse complètement le pied avant est interdit**. Toute infraction entraînera les sanctions prévues **pour les fautes du 1^{er} groupe (cf. t.114, t.116 et t.120)**. La touche éventuellement portée par le tireur fautif sera annulée. Par contre, la touche portée correctement par l'adversaire sera comptée.

ARTICLE PROPOSÉ :

5. La **passé avant**, la **flèche** et tout mouvement **vers l'avant du talon du pied arrière qui dépasse le talon du pied avant est interdit**. Toute infraction entraînera les sanctions prévues **pour les fautes du 1^{er} groupe (cf. t.114, t.116**

et t.120). La touche éventuellement portée par le tireur fautif sera annulée. Par contre, la touche portée correctement par l'adversaire sera comptée.

ARTICLE PROPOSÉ AVEC CHANGEMENTS :

5. La **passé avant**, la **flèche** et tout mouvement **vers l'avant du talon du pied arrière qui dépasse complètement le talon du pied avant est interdit**. Toute infraction entraînera les sanctions prévues **pour les fautes du 1^{er} groupe (cf. t.114, t.116 et t.120)**. La touche éventuellement portée par le tireur fautif sera annulée. Par contre, la touche portée correctement par l'adversaire sera comptée.

Avis du groupe de travail (Commissions des Règlements, de l'arbitrage, Promotion, Conseil des entraîneurs) en charge de la révision des propositions reportées en 2013 :

Favorable.

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

Proposal 1

ANG

Proposed Change to Rules of Competition Governing the “Crossover” at Sabre (Rule t.75.5)

Motivation: *The current rule has increasingly caused problems for fencers, referees, trainers and spectators. The rule is not completely clear as to when a crossover occurs and the critical point is difficult for the referee to see accurately. The problem is magnified during video reviews because the fixed camera position gives a skewed perspective that makes it difficult to see accurately the relative positions of the rear heel and the toes of the front foot. As a result, disagreements and confusion about crossing over actions have grown more frequent and video review is not as effective as it might be in resolving them.*

As now formulated a crossover is said to occur during a forward movement when “the rear foot completely passes the front foot.” This appears to mean the crossover occurs when the heel of the rear foot passes the tips of the toes of the front foot. But at that point the lower legs and the ankles have already passed each other, and a small but real step can take place. Indeed, one can by taking small steps actually walk down the piste without violating the rule. The proposed changes address these concerns.

The current rule is also difficult for referees to apply during the heat of the action because the precise moment when the heel of the rear foot passes the toes of the front foot is hard to see. The proposed language states that the crossover occurs when the heel of the rear foot passes the heel of the front foot. This alignment of body parts should be much easier for the referee to observe, both during live action and during video replay, and facilitates application of the rule.

Summary: The proposed change is intended to decrease ambiguity about when a prohibited crossing of the feet occurs in sabre by clarifying the point at which a crossover happens.

CURRENT RULE t.75.5:

5. The fleche and any forward movement in which the rear foot completely passes the front foot is forbidden. Any offence will be penalised as specified for penalties in the 1st group (cf. t.114, t.116 et t.120). Any hit scored by the fencer at fault will be annulled. However, any hit correctly executed by his opponent is valid.

PROPOSED RULE:

5. The fleche and any forward movement in which the heel of the the rear foot passes the heel of the front foot is forbidden. Any offence will be penalised as specified for penalties in the 1st group (cf. t.114, t.116 et t.120). Any hit scored by the fencer at fault will be annulled. However, any hit correctly executed by his opponent is valid.

PROPOSED RULE, WITH CHANGES MARKED:

5. The fleche and any forward movement in which the **heel of the** rear foot **completely** passes **the heel of** the front foot is forbidden. Any offence will be penalised as specified for penalties in the 1st group (cf. t.114, t.116 et t.120). Any hit scored by the fencer at fault will be annulled. However, any hit correctly executed by his opponent is valid.

Opinion of the working group (Rules, Refereeing, Promotion Commissions, Coaches Council) charge of the review of the proposals postponed in 2013:

In favour.

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

IN FAVOR

Propositions de la Commission des Règlements
Proposals from the Rules Commission
Propuestas de la Comisión de Reglamentos

Proposition 1

FRA

Motivation : *Mise à jour des articles concernant le logo aux Championnats de zone.*

t.45.4

- b) Port de la tenue nationale et **du logo** (cf. m.25.3) application comme suit :
 - i) Championnats du Monde **Seniors et** ~~et Championnats du Monde~~ Juniors/Cadets, tous les matches, en poule, en élimination directe et en rencontre par équipe ;
 - ii) **En individuel :** Compétitions de la Coupe du Monde Senior ~~individuelles et Championnats de Zone Seniors~~, **tous les matches, en poule et en élimination directe;**
 - iii) **Par équipes :** Compétitions de la Coupe du Monde ~~par équipes et~~ **Championnats de Zone Seniors**, tous les matches dans toutes les rencontres;

En cas de violation des points ci-dessus :

Pour les compétitions mentionnées dans les points i) et iii) ci-dessus, l'arbitre éliminera le tireur fautif qui ne pourra plus participer à l'épreuve.

Pour les compétitions mentionnées dans le point ii) ci-dessus, l'arbitre sanctionnera le tireur fautif d'un carton rouge (Articles t.114, t.117, t.120, 2ème groupe). Par contre le tireur fautif a le droit de rester en piste et de tirer le match concerné.

~~La même sanction est également applicable pour absence de nom et de nationalité réglementaire sur le dos de la veste dans les compétitions de la Coupe du monde Juniors et dans les compétitions de la Coupe du Monde Seniors individuelles avant le tableau de 64, et dans les Championnats de zone.~~

Avis des Commissions de l'Arbitrage, Promotion et Conseil des entraîneurs : Favorable.

NB: Recommandation : Dans le Règlement en anglais, que les mots "Open Championships" soient remplacés par l'équivalent en français de "Championnats Seniors".

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

Proposal 1

ANG

Motivation: *Up-dating of the articles on logo for zonal championships.*

t.45.4

b) Wearing his national uniform **and logo** (cf. m.25.3). Application as follows:

- i) Open, Junior and Cadet World Championships, all bouts, whether in a pool, in the direct elimination **and** ~~or~~ during a team match;
- ii) Individual: Senior World Cup competitions and ~~in individual~~ Zonal Championships, **all bouts, whether in a pool or in the direct elimination**;
- iii) Teams: World Cup ~~team~~ competitions **and Zonal Championships**, all bouts in every match.

In case of violation of this rule:

- For the competitions mentioned in items i) and iii) above, the Referee shall eliminate the fencer at fault, and he will not be allowed to participate further in the event.
- For the competitions mentioned in item ii) above, the Referee shall penalise the fencer at fault with a Red Card (Articles t.114, t.117, t.120, Second Group). The fencer at fault shall however be allowed to remain on the piste and fence the bout concerned.

~~The same penalty is also applied for the absence of name and nationality, in accordance with the rules, on the back of the jacket at Junior World Cup competitions, at Individual Senior World Cup competitions before the last 64, and at Zonal Championships.~~

Opinion of the Refereeing, Promotion Commissions and Coaches Council: In favour.

NB: recommend that in the English rules the word “Open Championships” be replaced by the equivalent of “Championnats Seniors” in French.

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

IN FAVOR

But situations of “force majeure” (Jacket damaged during the bout, bags did not arrived, etc) should be clearly stated.

Proposition 2

FRA

Motivation : *Mise à jour des articles concernant le logo national et la nationalité é dans le dos aux Championnats de zone.*

Faute 0.1 de t.120.

Absence de nom **et nationalité** sur le dos, absence **de logo national ou** de la tenue nationale quand obligatoires, aux Championnats du Monde, aux Coupes du Monde par équipes et **aux Championnats de Zone par équipes**

Avis des Commissions de l'Arbitrage, Promotion et Conseil des entraîneurs :
Favorable.

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

Proposal 2

ANG

Motivation: *Up-dating of the articles on national logo and name on the back for zonal championships.*

Fault 0.1 in t.120.

Absence of name **and nationality** on the back, absence of **national logo** or national **costume colours** when compulsory, at World Championships/Team World Cup competitions **and at team Zonal Championships.**

Opinion of the Refereeing, Promotion Commissions: In favour.

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

IN FAVOR

But situations of “force majeure” (Jacket damaged during the bout, bags did not arrived, etc) should be clearly stated.

Proposition 3

FRA

Motivation : *Mise à jour des articles concernant le logo national et la nationalité dans le dos aux Championnats de zone.*

Faute 2.4 de t.120

Absence de nom **et nationalité** sur le dos, absence **de logo national** ~~de tenue nationale~~ quand obligatoire, aux Coupes du Monde et Championnats de Zone individuels

Avis des Commissions de l'Arbitrage, Promotion et Conseil des entraîneurs :
Favorable.

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

Proposal 3

ANG

Motivation: Up-dating of the articles on national logo and name on the back for zonal championships.

Fault 2.4 of t.120

Absence of name **and nationality** on **the** back, absence of **national logo colours** when compulsory, at individual World Cup competitions and **individual** Zonal Championships.

Opinion of the Refereeing, Promotion Commissions : In favour.

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

IN FAVOR

But situations of “force majeure” (Jacket damaged during the bout, bags did not arrived, etc) should be clearly stated.

Proposition 4

FRA

Motivation : Après l'incident à Londres, il y a une proposition de changer le Règlement pour que les millisecondes soient visibles sur le chronomètre et que l'arbitre contrôle le chronométrage dans la dernière minute. Il y a une proposition initiale de Swiss Timing pour que la commande "Allez" soit donnée par la machine.

Propositions de la Commission :

- Les chronomètres montrant les 100èmes de secondes devraient être introduits,
- L'arbitre devrait pouvoir manuellement revenir au temps précédent avec la précision du 100ème de seconde
- L'arbitre devrait opérer le chronomètre pendant la dernière minute,
- La télécommande pour l'arbitre devrait être simplifiée pour être plus facile à manipuler ; elle devrait fonctionner selon les ondes radio et non pas le signal IR,
- Toute commande orale devraient être données par l'arbitre et non pas par la machine
- L'introduction de ce système devrait être faite pas à pas, en commençant par les Championnats du Monde et les Jeux Olympiques.

Avis des Commissions de l'Arbitrage, Promotion et du Conseil des Entraîneurs : Favorable. Ces propositions doivent être soumises à la Commission SEMI pour approbation et préparation des textes correspondants pour le Règlement.

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

Proposal 4

ANG

Motivation: After the incident in London, there is a proposal to change the rules so that also milliseconds are shown on the chronometer and that the referee controls the time-keeping in the last minute. There is an initial proposal from Swiss Timing to have the command "Allez" being given by the machine.

Proposals of the Commission:

- Chronometers showing 100th of seconds should be introduced,
- The referee should be able to manually set the time to the previous time with precision of 100th of a second,
- The referee should operate the time-keeping during the last minute,
- The remote control for the referee should be simplified to make it easier to handle and should operate with radio and not IR-signal,
- Any oral commands should be given by the referee and not by the machine
- Introduction of this system should be made step by step, beginning with the World Championships and the Olympic Games.

Opinion of the Refereeing, Promotion Commissions and Coaches Council: In favour. These proposals should be submitted to the SEMI Commission for approval and preparation of the corresponding texts into the Rules.

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

IN FAVOR

Propositions de la Fédération Iranienne d'escrime
Iranian Fencing Federation Proposals
Propuestas de la Federación de Esgrima de Irán

Proposition 9

FRA

Motivation :

1. Étant donné que de nos jours la plupart des compétitions de la FIE ont tant de participants que nous avons un tableau d'élimination directe préliminaire de 128, et même parfois un tableau de 256.
2. Pour reconnaître les efforts des perdants du tableau d'élimination directe préliminaire de 64.
3. Pour diminuer le nombre de tireurs marquant 0 point dans le classement individuel officiel de la FIE. Si on analyse le classement officiel actuel à l'épée masculine (13/2/2014), nous constatons que 327 tireurs seulement ont des points, alors que 670 tireurs n'ont aucun point, en d'autres termes, ils ont 0 points ce qui est un facteur critique pour notre classement.

Par conséquent, pour avoir un classement plus logique et plus équitable, nous proposons d'ajouter un nouveau point au barème des points de l'article o.83.2, comme suit :

Barème des points

2. a)

Le classement sera fait sur la base du **pointage suivant** :

1ère place 32 points

2ème place 26 points

3èmes places ex aequo 20 points

5ème à 8ème places 14 points

9ème à 16ème places 8 points

17ème à 32ème places 4 points

33ème à 64ème places 2 points

65ème à 96ème places 1 point

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

Proposal 9

ANG

A proposal for o.83

Motivation:

1. Since nowadays most of FIE competitions are so crowded that we are having a preliminary direct elimination table of 128 and even sometimes a table of 256.
2. To value efforts of losers of the preliminary direct elimination table of 64.
3. To decrease the fencers with 0 points in the FIE official individual ranking. If we have a look on today's Epee Men official ranking (13/2/2014), we see that only 327 fencers have points, where 670 fencers have no points, in other words, they have 0 points which is a critical point for our ranking.

So, to have a more logic and fair ranking, we propose to add a new point to the scale of points in o.83.3 as follows:

Scale of points

2. a) The ranking is based on the **following points system**:

- 1st place 32 points
- 2nd place 26 points
- 3rd place *ex aequo* 20 points
- 5th–8th places 14 points
- 9th–16th places 8 points
- 17th–32nd places 4 points
- 33rd–64th places 2 points
- 65th-96th places 1 point

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

IN FAVOR

Proposition 10

FRA

- o.11. Les épreuves individuelles peuvent être organisées:
- a) **Par élimination directe, avec la formule mixte** comprenant un tour de poules éliminatoire et un tableau d'élimination directe préliminaire, puis un tableau principal d'élimination directe de 64 tireurs pour qualifier huit ou quatre tireurs pour une finale en élimination directe.
 - b) **Par élimination directe, avec la formule mixte** comprenant un tour de poules éliminatoire, puis un tableau d'élimination directe pour qualifier huit ou quatre tireurs pour une finale en élimination directe.
 - c) **Par élimination directe formule intégrale** (cette formule, applicable aux Jeux Olympiques, figure en annexe).

Motivation : Comme il est évident dans cet article, on ne peut utiliser que 3 types de formules dans les compétitions officielles de la FIE. Mais étant donné que de nos jours le nombre de compétitions a augmenté, et que le niveau des compétitions qui sont sous la supervision de la FIE a beaucoup changé, nous proposons d'améliorer cet article en fonction des besoins actuels des compétitions officielles de la FIE.

Tout d'abord, examinons les compétitions actuelles de la FIE :

1. Championnat du monde senior
2. Coupes du monde seniors
3. Grand prix
4. Championnat du monde junior
5. Coupes du monde juniors
6. Championnats de zone
7. Championnat du monde cadet
8. Compétitions satellites
9. Masters
10. Jeux olympiques
11. Jeux régionaux

Nous savons que les formules utilisées dans plusieurs des compétitions susmentionnées ne sont pas les mêmes, par conséquent nous allons regrouper les formules actuelles, et du même coup, nous allons y ajouter les formules que nous proposons.

o.11. Les épreuves individuelles peuvent être organisées:

- a) Par élimination directe, avec la formule mixte avec exemption (Championnat du monde senior, Coupes du monde seniors et Grand Prix)** comprenant un tour de poules éliminatoire et un tableau d'élimination directe préliminaire, puis un tableau principal d'élimination directe de 64 tireurs comprenant 32 tireurs exemptés, pour qualifier huit ou quatre tireurs pour une finale en élimination directe.
 - b) Par élimination directe, avec la formule mixte sans exemption (Championnat du monde junior, Coupes du monde juniors et Championnats de zone)** comprenant un tour de poules éliminatoire, puis un tableau d'élimination directe pour qualifier huit ou quatre tireurs pour une finale en élimination directe.
 - c) Par élimination directe, avec la formule mixte selon le classement (Championnat du monde cadet)** comprenant un tour de poules éliminatoire, puis un tableau d'élimination directe pour qualifier huit ou quatre tireurs pour une finale en élimination directe, basé sur le Championnat du monde cadet de l'année précédente et sur le classement officiel junior en vigueur de la FIE.
 - d) Par élimination directe, avec une formule mixte avec deux tours de poules (compétitions satellites)** comprenant deux tours de poules éliminatoires, puis un tableau d'élimination directe pour qualifier huit ou quatre tireurs pour une finale en élimination directe.
 - e) Par élimination directe formule intégrale (Masters)** comprenant un tableau d'élimination directe pour qualifier huit ou quatre tireurs pour une finale en élimination directe.
 - f) Par élimination directe formule intégrale (Jeux Olympiques)** comprenant un tableau d'élimination directe pour qualifier huit ou quatre tireurs pour une finale en élimination directe, avec un match pour la troisième place.
- i) Aucune formule, à l'exception de celle pour les Jeux olympiques, ne comporte un match pour la troisième place.

De plus, étant donnée la situation actuelle qui se produit généralement dans les compétitions ayant peu de participants, nous proposons aussi le sous-article suivant :

ii) Chaque fois que dans une compétition du groupe (a) le nombre de tireurs ne permet pas d'organiser un tableau d'élimination directe préliminaire, il n'y aura pas d'exempts dans cette compétition.

Dans certaines autres compétitions, et surtout les compétitions juniors, nous rencontrons souvent le problème que trop de tireurs n'ont aucun classement, même si certains d'entre eux sont très bons, alors pour être justes et équitables, nous proposons aussi le sous-article suivant :

iii) Chaque fois que dans une compétition le nombre de tireurs n'ayant pas de classement excède le nombre de tireurs ayant un classement, la compétition comportera deux tours de poules préliminaires.

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

A proposal for o.11

o.11. Individual competitions may be organised:

- a) By direct elimination with a mixed system** consisting of one round of eliminating pools and a preliminary direct elimination table, followed by a main direct elimination table of 64 fencers to qualify 8 or 4 fencers for a direct elimination final.
- b) By direct elimination with a mixed system** consisting of one round of eliminating pools, followed by a direct elimination table to qualify 8 or 4 fencers for a direct elimination final.
- c) By direct elimination throughout.** (This formula, applicable at the Olympic Games, is contained in an annexe.)

Motivation: As it is obvious in this article, only 3 kinds of formulas are to be used in organizing FIE official competitions. But since nowadays the number of competitions has increased and the level of competitions which are under the supervision of FIE has highly differed, we propose to improve this article according to today's FIE official competitions needs.

First of all, let's review the current FIE competitions:

1. Open Senior World Championships
2. Open Senior World Cups
3. Grand Prix
4. Open Junior World Championships
5. Open Junior World Cups
6. Zone Championships
7. Cadet World Championships
8. Satellite Competitions
9. The Masters
10. The Olympics
11. The Regional Games

We know that the formulas that are used in some of the above mentioned competitions are not the same, thereby, we are going to assemble the current formulas and at the same time we will add our proposed ones.

o.11. Individual competitions may be organized:

- a) By a mixed formula with exemption (Open Senior World Championships, Senior World Cups and Grand Prixes)**

One round of eliminating pools, a preliminary direct elimination table, followed by a main direct elimination table of 64 fencers, including 32 exempted fencers, to qualify 8 or 4 fencers for a direct elimination final.

- b) By a mixed formula without exemption (Open Junior World Championships, Junior World Cups and Zonal Championships)**

One round of eliminating pools, followed by a direct elimination table to qualify 8 or 4 fencers for a direct elimination final.

- c) By a mixed ranking system (Cadet World Championships)**

One round of eliminating pools, followed by a direct elimination table to qualify 8 or 4 fencers for a direct elimination final, based on the previous year Cadet World Championships and the current official FIE Junior ranking.

- d) By a mixed formula with 2 rounds of pools (Satellite competitions)**

Two rounds of eliminating pools, followed by a direct elimination table to qualify 8 or 4 fencers for a direct elimination final.

e) By direct elimination throughout. (The Masters)

A direct elimination table to qualify 8 or 4 fencers for a direct elimination final.

f) By direct elimination throughout. (The Olympics)

A direct elimination table to qualify 8 or 4 fencers for a direct elimination final, with a match for the third place.

i) All formulas except the Olympics are run without a match for the third place.

Moreover, according to the actual situations which usually happen in those competitions with few participants, we also propose the following sub-articles:

ii) Whenever in a competition from group (a), the number of fencers don't allow running a preliminary direct elimination table, the competition will be run without exemption.

In some other competitions, specially junior ones, we often face a problem that too many participating fencers have no ranking where some of them are very good at fencing, so in order to be just and fair we propose the following sub-article:

iii) Whenever in a competition the number of fencers without ranking exceed the number of fencers with ranking, the competition will be run with two rounds of preliminary pools.

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

NOT IN FAVOR

But can be recommended for satellite competitions and competitions run by confederations and federations

Proposition 11

FRA

t.63 3. Il ne faut pas confondre la "flèche finissant systématiquement en corps à corps" dont il est question dans cet article avec la "flèche se terminant par choc bousculant l'adversaire" qui, aux trois armes, est considérée comme acte de **brutalité volontaire** et sanctionnée comme tel (Cf. **t.87.2, t.120**).

t.87. 2. Tout match doit conserver un **caractère courtois et loyal**. Tout **acte anormal** (flèche qui se termine par un choc bousculant l'adversaire, jeu désordonné, déplacements anormaux, coups portés brutalement, coups portés avec la coquille, touche portée **pendant ou après une chute**) ou comportement antisportif sont formellement interdits (Cf. **t.114 à t.120**). Dans le cas d'une telle faute, la touche éventuellement portée par le tireur fautif sera annulée.

Attribution d'une touche non effectivement reçue

t.104 Un tireur peut **se voir pénaliser d'une touche** qu'il n'a pas effectivement reçue, soit par suite de sortie de la piste par la limite arrière (Cf. **t.27**), soit par suite d'une faute ayant empêché l'adversaire de tirer (**flèche bousculante**, corps à corps au fleuret et au sabre, intervention de la main non armée, etc.) (Cf. **t.96.2, t.114.3.a/b, t.116, t.117, t.118.1, t.120**)

	Premier groupe				
1.15	Bousculade,	t.87.2	Jaune	Rouge	Rouge

Motivation :

Comme vous pouvez le constater dans les articles ci-dessus, il y a diverses phrases concernant la flèche bousculante, avec diverses sanctions. Pour simplifier le règlement et le reformuler tel qu'il est appliqué dans la pratique, nous proposons de modifier toutes les phrases surlignées ci-dessus en jaune à : «**attaque en flèche se terminant par un choc bousculant l'adversaire**» qui dans la pratique mérite la sanction du deuxième groupe de fautes et sanctions.

Articles proposés :

t.63 3. Il ne faut pas confondre la "flèche finissant systématiquement en corps à corps" dont il est question dans cet article avec "l'**attaque en flèche se terminant par un choc bousculant l'adversaire**" ~~qui, aux trois armes, est considérée comme acte de brutalité volontaire et sanctionnée comme tel~~ (Cf. **t.87.2, t.120**).

t.87. 2 Tout match doit conserver un **caractère courtois et loyal**. Tout **acte anormal** (**attaque en flèche qui se termine se terminant** par un choc bousculant l'adversaire, jeu désordonné, déplacements anormaux, coups portés brutalement, coups portés avec la coquille, touche portée **pendant ou après une chute**) ou comportement antisportif sont formellement interdits (Cf. **t.114 à t.120**). Dans le cas d'une telle faute, la touche éventuellement portée par le tireur fautif sera annulée.

Attribution d'une touche non effectivement reçue

t.104 Un tireur peut **se voir pénaliser d'une touche** qu'il n'a pas effectivement reçue, soit par suite de sortie de la piste par la limite arrière (Cf. **t.27**), soit par suite d'une faute ayant empêché l'adversaire de tirer (**attaque en flèche bousculante se terminant par un choc bousculant l'adversaire**, corps à corps au fleuret et au sabre, intervention de la main non armée, etc.) (Cf. **t.96.2, t.114.3.a/b, t.116, t.117, t.118.1, t.120**)

	Premier groupe				
1.15	Bousculade,	t.87.2	Jaune	Rouge	Rouge

	Second Group				
2.7	attaque en flèche se terminant par un choc bousculant l'adversaire *	t.63, t.87.2, t.104	Rouge	Rouge	Rouge

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

Proposal 11

ANG

t.63. 3. The 'flèche ending systematically in a corps à corps' referred to in this article must not be confused with the 'flèche resulting in a shock which jostles the opponent', which is considered as an act of **intentional brutality** at all three weapons and is

punished as such (cf. t.87.2, t.120).

- t.87. 2.** All bouts must preserve the **character of a courteous and frank encounter**. All **irregular actions** (flèche attack which finishes with a collision jostling the opponent, disorderly fencing, irregular movements on the piste, hits achieved with violence, blows struck with the guard, hits made during or after a fall) or antisporting behaviour are strictly forbidden (cf. t.114–t.120). Should such an offence occur, any hit scored by the fencer at fault is annulled.

Award of a hit which has not in fact been received

- t.104.** A competitor may have a **hit awarded against him** which he has not in fact received, either because he has crossed the rear limit of the piste (cf. t.27), or because he has committed an offence which has prevented his opponent fencing (a flèche attack which jostles the opponent, a corps à corps at foil or sabre, the use of the unarmed hand while fencing, etc.) (cf. t.96.2, t.114.3.a/b, t.116, t.117, t.118.1, t.120).

	First Group				
1.15	Jostling,	t.87.2	Yellow	Red	Red

Motivation:

As you see in the above articles we have several phrases about jostling with different wording and different penalties. In order to simplify the rules and rewrite them as they are practically applied we propose to change all the red colored phrases to “flèche attack resulting in a shock which jostles the opponent” which practically deserves the penalty of the second group of offences and penalties.

Proposed articles:

- t.63. 3.** The ‘flèche ending systematically in a corps à corps’ referred to in this article must not be confused with the ‘flèche attack resulting in a shock which jostles the opponent’. ~~which is considered as an act of intentional brutality at all three weapons and is punished as such~~ (cf. t.87.2, t.120).
- t.87. 2.** All bouts must preserve the **character of a courteous and frank encounter**. All **irregular actions** (flèche attack resulting in a shock which jostles the opponent, disorderly fencing, irregular movements on the piste, hits achieved with violence, blows struck with the guard, hits made during or after a fall) or antisporting behaviour are strictly forbidden (cf. t.114–t.120). Should such an offence occur, any hit scored by the fencer at fault is annulled.

Award of a hit which has not in fact been received

- t.104.** A competitor may have a **hit awarded against him** which he has not in fact received, either because he has crossed the rear limit of the piste (cf. t.27), or because he has committed an offence which has prevented his opponent fencing (a flèche attack resulting in a shock which jostles the opponent, a corps à corps at foil or sabre, the use of the unarmed hand while fencing, etc.) (cf. t.96.2, t.114.3.a/b, t.116, t.117, t.118.1, t.120).

	First Group				
1.15	Jostling,	t.87.2	Yellow	Red	Red

	Second Group				
2.7	flèche attack resulting in a shock which jostles the opponent *	t.63, t.87.2, t.104	Red	Red	Red

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

NOT IN FAVOR

Proposition 12

FRA

t.87. 2. Tout match doit conserver un **caractère courtois et loyal**. Tout **acte anormal** (flèche qui se termine par un choc bousculant l'adversaire, **jeu désordonné, déplacements anormaux**, coups portés brutalement, coups portés avec la coquille, touche portée **pendant ou après une chute**) ou comportement antisportif sont formellement interdits (Cf. **t.114 à t.120**). Dans le cas d'une telle faute, la touche éventuellement portée par le tireur fautif sera annulée.

Motivation:

Étant donné que ces deux fautes ont la même signification, nous proposons de modifier les deux et de les remplacer par la phrase suivante : “**déplacements d'escrime anormaux sur la piste**”.

Articles proposés :

t.87. 2. Tout match doit conserver un **caractère courtois et loyal**. Tout **acte anormal** (flèche qui se termine par un choc bousculant l'adversaire, ~~jeu désordonné~~, déplacements **d'escrime anormaux sur la piste**, coups portés brutalement, coups portés avec la coquille, touche portée **pendant ou après une chute**) ou comportement antisportif sont formellement interdits (Cf. **t.114 à t.120**). Dans le cas d'une telle faute, la touche éventuellement portée par le tireur fautif sera annulée.

Premier groupe					
1.15	jeu désordonné ,	t.87.2	Jaune	Rouge	Rouge
1.16	Déplacements d'escrime anormaux sur la piste (*) ; Coups portés brutalement ou touche portée pendant et après une chute (*)	t.87.2	Jaune	Rouge	Rouge

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

Proposal 12

ANG

t.87. 2. All bouts must preserve the **character of a courteous and frank encounter**. All **irregular actions** (flèche attack which finishes with a collision jostling the opponent, **disorderly fencing, irregular movements on the piste**, hits achieved with violence, blows struck with the guard, hits made during or after a fall) or anti-sporting behaviour are strictly forbidden (cf. t.114–t.120). Should such an offence occur, any hit scored by the fencer at fault is annulled.

Motivation:

As these two offences are the same in meaning, we propose to change both of them to the following phrase:

“**irregular fencing movements on the piste**”

Proposed articles:

t.87. 2. All bouts must preserve the **character of a courteous and frank encounter**. All **irregular actions** (flèche attack which finishes with a collision jostling the opponent, **disorderly fencing**, **irregular fencing movements on the piste**, hits achieved with violence, blows struck with the guard, hits made during or after a fall) or antisporting behaviour are strictly forbidden (cf. t.114–t.120). Should such an offence occur, any hit scored by the fencer at fault is annulled.

First Group					
1.15	disorderly fencing	t.87.2	Yellow	Red	Red
1.16	Irregular fencing movements on the piste * ; hits made with violence* , hits during or after falling *	t.87.2	Yellow	Red	Red

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

NOT IN FAVOR

Proposition 13

FRA

t.87. 2. Tout match doit conserver un **caractère courtois et loyal**. Tout **acte anormal** (flèche qui se termine par un choc bousculant l'adversaire, jeu désordonné, déplacements anormaux, coups portés brutalement, **coups portés avec la coquille**, touche portée **pendant ou après une chute**) ou comportement antisportif sont formellement interdits (Cf. **t.114 à t.120**). Dans le cas d'une telle faute, la touche éventuellement portée par le tireur fautif sera annulée.

Deuxième groupe					
2.6	Acte violent, dangereux ou vindicatif, coup avec la coquille ou le pommeau (*)	t.87.2 ; t.103 ; t.105.1	Rouge	Rouge	Rouge

Motivation:

Étant donné que ces deux phrases ont la même signification, nous proposons de les modifier toutes les deux et d'utiliser la phrase unique suivante : «**coups portés avec la coquille ou le pommeau**»

Articles proposés :

t.87. 2. Tout match doit conserver un **caractère courtois et loyal**. Tout **acte anormal** (flèche qui se termine par un choc bousculant l'adversaire, jeu désordonné, déplacements anormaux, coups portés brutalement, **coups portés avec la coquille ou le pommeau**, touche portée **pendant ou après une chute**) ou comportement antisportif sont formellement interdits (Cf. **t.114 à t.120**). Dans le cas d'une telle faute, la touche éventuellement portée par le tireur fautif sera annulée.

Deuxième groupe					
2.6	Acte violent, dangereux ou vindicatif, coup porté avec la coquille ou le pommeau (*)	t.87.2 ; t.103 ; t.105.1	Rouge	Rouge	Rouge

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

Proposal 13

ANG

- t.87. 2. All bouts must preserve the **character of a courteous and frank encounter**. All **irregular actions** (flèche attack which finishes with a collision jostling the opponent, disorderly fencing, irregular movements on the piste, hits achieved with violence, **blows struck with the guard**, hits made during or after a fall) or antisporting behaviour are strictly forbidden (cf. t.114–t.120). Should such an offence occur, any hit scored by the fencer at fault is annulled.

Second Group					
2.6	Dangerous, violent or vindictive action*, blow with guard or pommel *	t.87.2 ; t.103 ; t.105.1	Red	Red	Red

Motivation:

As these two phrases are the same in meaning, we propose to change both of them to the following unique phrase:

“blows struck with the guard or pommel”

Proposed articles:

- t.87. 2. All bouts must preserve the **character of a courteous and frank encounter**. All **irregular actions** (flèche attack which finishes with a collision jostling the opponent, disorderly fencing, irregular movements on the piste, hits achieved with violence, blows struck with the guard **or pommel**, hits made during or after a fall) or anti-sporting behavior are strictly forbidden (cf. t.114–t.120). Should such an offence occur, any hit scored by the fencer at fault is annulled.

Second Group					
2.6	Dangerous, violent or vindictive action*, blows struck with the guard or pommel *	t.87.2 ; t.103 ; t.105.1	Red	Red	Red

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

NOT IN FAVOR

Proposition 14

FRA

Exclusion

- t.105. 1 Le tireur qui commet en combattant certaines **violences ou des actes vindicatifs** à l'égard de son adversaire, de même que celui qui **ne défend pas loyalement sa chance** ou qui **profite d'un accord frauduleux** avec son adversaire, peut se voir exclure de l'épreuve.

Deuxième groupe					
2.6	Acte violent, dangereux ou vindicatif , coup avec la coquille ou le pommeau (*)	t.87.2 ; t.103 ; t.105.1	Rouge	Rouge	Rouge

Motivation:

Étant donné que la phrase «**commet en combattant certaines violences ou des actes vindicatifs à l'égard de son adversaire**» figure dans l'article t.105.1 et qu'on fait référence à cet article à la faute 4.8 du quatrième groupe de fautes et sanctions, nous proposons d'omettre cette autre du deuxième groupe, et d'ajouter la phrase modifiée suivante au quatrième groupe : «**actes dangereux, violents ou vindicatifs**».

Articles proposés :**Exclusion**

t.105. 1 Le tireur qui commet en combattant ~~certaines violences ou des actes vindicatifs~~ certains actes dangereux, violents ou vindicatifs à l'égard de son adversaire, de même que celui qui **ne défend pas loyalement sa chance** ou qui **profite d'un accord frauduleux** avec son adversaire, peut se voir exclure de l'épreuve.

Deuxième groupe					
2.6	Acte violent, dangereux ou vindicatif, coup avec la coquille ou le pommeau (*)	t.87.2 ; t.103 ; t.105.1	Rouge	Rouge	Rouge

Quatrième groupe					
4.8	Brutalité intentionnelle (actes dangereux, violents ou vindicatifs)	t.105.1	Noir		

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :**Proposal 14****ANG****Exclusion**

t.105. 1. A competitor who, while fencing, commits certain dangerous, **violent or vindictive actions** against his opponent, or who does not **fence to his utmost ability**, or who **profits from a fraudulent agreement** with his opponent, may be excluded from the competition.

Second Group					
2.6	Dangerous, violent or vindictive action* , blow with guard or pommel *	t.87.2 ; t.103 ; t.105.1	Red	Red	Red

Motivation:

As the phrase "**Committing certain violent or vindictive actions against one's opponent**" appears in t.105.1 and this article is referred to in offence 4.8 of the Forth Group of Offences and Penalties, we propose to omit this offence from the Second Group and add the following modified phrase to the Forth Group.

"**dangerous, violent or vindictive actions**"

Proposed articles:**Exclusion**

t.105. 1. A competitor who, while fencing, commits certain **dangerous, violent or vindictive actions** against his opponent, or who does not **fence to his utmost ability**, or who **profits from a fraudulent agreement** with his opponent, may be excluded from the competition.

Second Group					
2.6	Dangerous, violent or vindictive action* , blow with guard or pommel *	t.87.2 ; t.103 ; t.105.1	Red	Red	Red

	Forth Group		
4.8	Deliberate brutality (dangerous, violent or vindictive actions)	t.105.1	Black

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

NOT IN FAVOR

Proposition 15

FRA

t.87. 2. Tout match doit conserver un **caractère courtois et loyal**. Tout **acte anormal** (flèche qui se termine par un choc bousculant l'adversaire, jeu désordonné, déplacements anormaux, coups portés brutalement, coups portés avec la coquille, touche portée **pendant ou après une chute**) ou **comportement antisportif** sont formellement interdits (Cf. **t.114 à t.120**). Dans le cas d'une telle faute, la touche éventuellement portée par le tireur fautif sera annulée.

Exclusion

t.105. 1 Le tireur qui commet en combattant certaines **violences ou des actes vindicatifs** à l'égard de son adversaire, de même que celui qui **ne défend pas loyalement sa chance** ou qui **profite d'un accord frauduleux** avec son adversaire, peut se voir exclure de l'épreuve.

	Troisième groupe			
3.6	Comportement antisportif	t.87.2	Jaune	Noir

	Quatrième groupe		
4.5	Faute contre l'esprit sportif	t.87.2 ; t.105.1	Noir

Motivation:

1. Étant donné que les deux phrases «**Comportement antisportif**» et «**Faute contre l'esprit sportif**» ont la même signification, nous proposons d'omettre la faute 3.6 du troisième groupe dans le tableau des Fautes et sanctions, et d'ajouter «**tout acte contre l'esprit sportif**» à l'article t.105.1.

2. En référence au nouveau sous-article **t.87.3.b**, récemment ajouté, traitant de lancer son masque ou tout autre partie de son équipement, nous proposons d'ajouter t.87.3.b aux références de la faute 4.5 du quatrième groupe dans le tableau des Fautes et sanctions.

Articles proposés :

t.87. 2. Tout match doit conserver un **caractère courtois et loyal**. Tout **acte anormal** (flèche qui se termine par un choc bousculant l'adversaire, jeu désordonné, déplacements anormaux, coups portés brutalement, coups portés avec la coquille, touche portée **pendant ou après une chute**) ou **tout acte contre l'esprit sportif** ~~comportement antisportif~~ sont formellement interdits (Cf. **t.114 à t.120**). Dans le cas d'une telle faute, la touche éventuellement portée par le tireur fautif sera annulée.

Exclusion

t.105. 1 Le tireur qui commet en combattant **tout acte contre l'esprit sportif, tel que des violences ou des actes vindicatifs** à l'égard de son adversaire, de même que celui qui **ne défend pas loyalement sa chance** ou qui **profite d'un accord frauduleux** avec son adversaire, peut se voir exclure de l'épreuve.

Troisième groupe				
3.6	Comportement antisportif	t.87.2	Jaune	Noir
Quatrième groupe				
4.5	Faute Tout acte contre l'esprit sportif	t.87.2/3.b ; t.105.1	Noir	

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

Proposal 15

ANG

t.87. 2. All bouts must preserve the **character of a courteous and frank encounter**. All **irregular actions** (flèche attack which finishes with a collision jostling the opponent, disorderly fencing, irregular movements on the piste, hits achieved with violence, blows struck with the guard, hits made during or after a fall) or **anti-sporting behaviour** are strictly forbidden (cf. t.114–t.120). Should such an offence occur, any hit scored by the fencer at fault is annulled.

Exclusion

t.105. 1. A competitor who, while fencing, commits certain **violent or vindictive actions** against his opponent, or who does not **fence to his utmost ability**, or who **profits from a fraudulent agreement** with his opponent, may be excluded from the competition.

Third Group				
3.7	Anti-sporting behaviour	t.87.2	Yellow	Black
Forth Group				
4.5	Offence against sportsmanship	t.87.2 ; t.105.1	Black	

Motivation:

1. As the two phrase of “**anti-sporting behavior**” and “**offence against sportsmanship**” are the same in meaning, we propose to omit offence 3.6 from the Third Group of the table Offences and Penalties and add “**any act against sportsmanship**” to t.105.1.
2. Referring to the new added sub-article **t.87.3.b** about throwing mask or other pieces of equipment, we propose to add t.87.3.b to the references of offence 4.5 of the Forth Group of the table Offences and Penalties.

Proposed articles:

t.87. 2. All bouts must preserve the **character of a courteous and frank encounter**. All **irregular actions** (flèche attack which finishes with a collision jostling the opponent, disorderly fencing, irregular movements on the piste, hits achieved with violence, blows struck with the guard, hits made during or after a fall) or **any act against sportsmanship** are strictly forbidden (cf. t.114–t.120). Should such an offence occur, any hit scored by the fencer at fault is annulled.

Exclusion

t.105. 1. A competitor who, while fencing, commits **any act against sportsmanship** such as **violent or vindictive actions** against his opponent, or who does not **fence to his**

utmost ability, or who profits from a fraudulent agreement with his opponent, may be excluded from the competition.

	Third Group			
4.7	Anti-sporting behaviour	t.87.2	Yellow	Black
	Forth Group			
4.5	Offence Any act against sportsmanship	t.87.2/3.b ; t.105.1	Black	

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

NOT IN FAVOR

Proposition 16

FRA

Attribution d'une touche non effectivement reçue

t.104 Un tireur peut se voir pénaliser d'une touche qu'il n'a pas effectivement reçue, soit par suite de sortie de la piste par la limite arrière (Cf. t.27), soit par suite d'une faute ayant empêché l'adversaire de tirer (flèche bousculante, corps à corps au fleuret et au sabre, intervention de la main non armée, etc.) (Cf. t.96.2, t.114.3.a/b, t.116, t.117, t.118.1, t.120)

Motivation:

Un tireur qui franchit la limite arrière de la piste est pénalisé par une touche contre lui (t.27). Étant donné que cet acte est similaire aux fautes du deuxième groupe dans le tableau des Fautes et sanctions, nous proposons d'ajouter cet acte à t.120.

Articles proposés :

	Deuxième groupe				
2.7	Sortie de la piste par la limite arrière *	t.27 ; t.104	Rouge	Rouge	Rouge

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

Proposal 16

ANG

Award of a hit which has not in fact been received

t.104. A competitor may have a hit awarded against him which he has not in fact received, either because he has crossed the rear limit of the piste (cf. t.27), or because he has committed an offence which has prevented his opponent fencing (a flèche attack which jostles the opponent, a corps à corps at foil or sabre, the use of the unarmed hand while fencing, etc.) (cf. t.96.2, t.114.3.a/b, t.116, t.117, t.118.1, t.120).

Motivation:

If a fencer crosses the rear limits of the piste is penalized by a hit against him (t.27). As this action is similar to the offences of the Second Group of the Table of Offences and Penalties, we propose to add this action to t.120.

Proposed articles:

	Second Group				
2.7	Crossing the rear limits of the piste*,	t.27 ; t.104	Red	Red	Red

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

NOT IN FAVOR

Proposition 19

FRA

Motivation :

Dans le but:

1. d'intensifier l'atmosphère de compétition dans les rencontres par équipes;
 2. de diminuer la durée des compétitions;
 3. d'éviter les matches ennuyeux;
 4. d'améliorer l'attrait pour les spectateurs; et
 5. d'attirer les médias et améliorer l'attrait pour les téléspectateurs;
- nous proposons d'ajouter le sous-article suivant à o.44.8:

Sous-article proposé :

o.44 8 a) L'équipe vainqueur est celle qui a atteint, la première, le score maximum de 45 touches, ou celle qui a porté le plus de touches à la fin du temps réglementaire.

b) Si la différence de score entre les deux équipes excède 15 touches, la rencontre est arrêtée et l'équipe qui a marqué 15 touches de plus est considérée vainqueur de cette rencontre.

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

Proposal 19

ANG

Motivation:

In order to:

1. increase competition atmosphere in team competitions,
 2. reduce the time of the competitions,
 3. prevent boring matches,
 4. increase the attraction of the spectators, and
 5. attract the media and increase the enjoyment of TV viewers.
- we propose to add the following sub-article to o.44.8:

Proposed sub-article:

o.44 8. a) The winning team is that which first reaches the maximum score of 45 hits, or that

which has scored the greatest number of hits after the expiry of regulation time.

b) If a team scores exceed its opponent's by 15 hits, the match will be stopped, and the team who has scored 15 more hits will be considered as the winner of that team match.

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

NOT IN FAVOR

MODIFICATIONS DES RÈGLES DE COMPÉTITION
Titre 2. Règles d'organisation

Arbitres – Championnats du Monde vétérans, Compétitions de catégorie A, candidates à la catégorie A et Grand Prix:

~~o.81 1 a) Le nombre d'arbitres A ou B devant accompagner les délégations dans les tournois de catégorie A juniors et les Championnats du Monde vétérans est :~~

~~1 à 4 tireurs : pas d'obligation~~

~~5 à 9 tireurs : 1 arbitre~~

~~10 tireurs et plus : 2 arbitres~~

~~Dans les tournois de catégorie A juniors, le(s) nom(s) de ou des arbitre(s) doivent être annoncés par l'entremise du site Internet de la FIE, 7 jours avant l'épreuve (à minuit, heure de Lausanne). Ces arbitres doivent avoir une catégorie FIE dans l'arme de la compétition à laquelle ils sont inscrits.~~

~~b) Dans le cas où une fédération nationale n'amène pas les arbitres requis, une amende (cf. article o.86 tableau des pénalités financières et amendes) lui est infligée.~~

2 1. Aux **compétitions** de catégorie A seniors, **Grand Prix et Coupe du Monde par équipes**, aux **compétitions de catégorie A juniors** et aux **Championnats du Monde vétérans**, **8 arbitres** sont désignés par le Comité Exécutif, sur proposition de la Commission d'arbitrage, **et les délégations n'ont pas à fournir d'arbitres**. Les arbitres supplémentaires requis (au moins 5) seront fournis par le comité organisateur. Tous les **arbitres sont à la charge de l'organisateur, qui perçoit en contrepartie les droits d'inscriptions**.

2 Les arbitres pour les compétitions de la Coupe du monde doivent provenir du continent où la compétition a lieu.

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

MODIFICATIONS TO RULES FOR COMPETITIONS
Book 2. Organisation Rules

Referees — Veteran World Championships, A Grade and Candidate A Grade competitions and Grand Prix

~~o.81. 1. a) The number of FIE A or B Grade referees (cf. t.35) that must accompany teams to junior A Grade competitions and Veteran World Championship is:~~

~~1-4 fencers No obligation to provide a referee~~

~~5-9 fencers One referee~~

~~10 or more fencers Two referees~~

~~For junior A Grade competitions, the name(s) of the referee(s) (who must have an FIE category in the weapon of the competition for which they are entered) must be notified via the FIE website 7 days before the competition (midnight, Lausanne time).~~

~~b) Should a national federation not provide the required number of referees, a fine (cf o.86, table of financial penalties and fines) will be inflicted on it.~~

2 1. For **Open A-grade, Grand Prix and World Cup team competitions, junior A Grade competitions and Veteran World Championship** 8 referees proposed by the Refereeing Commission, will be designated by the Executive Committee and delegations will not have to provide any referees. The additional referees required (not less than 5) will be provided by the organising committee.

All the referees will be at the expense of the organisers who in return will keep the entry fees.

2 The referees for the World Cup competitions must be from the Continent where the competition is held.

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

NOT IN FAVOR

La proposition suivante concerne une modification des Statuts

The below proposal concerns an amendment of the Statutes

Proposition 3

FRA

Motivation :

En ce qui concerne la catégorie d'âge Cadette, la participation à la compétition de zone pourrait suffire, étant bien entendu que si une fédération souhaite qu'un tireur cadet participe à une compétition junior, il sera autorisé à y participer.

De plus, nous devons ajouter que le fait que, sous certains aspects, il pourrait s'avérer plus difficile d'organiser un tournoi comportant ensemble les deux catégories Junior et Cadette qu'un Championnat du monde senior, et par conséquent, exclure la catégorie Cadette rendrait plus courte la durée du Championnat du monde, si bien qu'il serait plus facile de trouver des organisateurs. En ce qui concerne la qualification pour les Jeux olympiques de la jeunesse, elle pourrait se faire par l'entremise de Championnats de zone cadets. Cela rendrait aussi ces compétitions plus intéressantes.

10.4 LES CHAMPIONNATS DU MONDE JUNIORS ~~ET CADETS~~

10.4.1 Règlements généraux

Sont disputés annuellement ~~ensemble~~ sous les auspices de la F.I.E. des Championnats du Monde juniors ~~et cadets~~ comprenant à chaque catégorie d'âge des épreuves individuelles au fleuret, à l'épée et au sabre masculins et féminins. Une épreuve par équipes, suivant les mêmes principes qu'aux Championnats du monde, sera disputée en catégorie junior.

Les Championnats du Monde juniors ~~et cadets~~ se déroulent chaque année au cours des deux premières semaines d'avril, sous l'autorité de la F.I.E.

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

Motivation :

In consideration of the age of the Cadet category, it could be enough the participation only to the Zonal Competition. It being understood that if a Federation wants a Cadet to participate in a Junior competition will be allowed to do it.

Furthermore, we must add the fact that organizing a tournament of the two categories together, Junior and cadet, could be more difficult than organizing the Senior World Championships for certain aspects, and therefore, excluding the Cadet category would make the World Championships period shorter and to find organizers would be easier. As far as the qualification for the Youth Olympic Games, this could be through the Zonal cadet Championships. This would also make these competitions more interesting.

10.4 JUNIOR AND CADET WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS**10.4.1 General Rules**

The World Junior ~~and World Cadet~~ Championships are to be held ~~together~~ annually under the auspices of the F.I.E., comprising individual competitions at men's and women's foil, épée and sabre. A team event under the same principles as for the Open World Championships shall be held for the Juniors.

The Junior ~~and Cadet~~ World Championships are held every year, during the first two weeks of April, under the auspices of the FIE.

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

NOT IN FAVOR

Propositions de la Fédération Russe d'escrime
Russian Fencing Federation Proposals
Propuestas de la Federación Rusa de Esgrima

Proposition 1

FRA

Motivation : Augmenter la durée des matchs de sabre; les spectateurs auront davantage de temps pour les analyser et comprendre ce qui se passe sur la piste. Les tireurs disposeront d'une manœuvre tactique supplémentaire.

t.27

1. Lorsqu'un tireur franchit complètement, avec les deux pieds, la **limite arrière** de la piste, il est déclaré touché.
2. Au sabre, un tireur a le droit de franchir une fois, avec les deux pieds, la limite arrière de la piste, au quel cas l'arbitre le rappelle sur la piste et le place avec le pied avant à deux mètres de la limite arrière de la piste. Si après avoir été replacé en garde à deux mètres de la limite arrière de la piste, il la franchit à nouveau, il est pénalisé d'une touche. Le tireur a le droit de franchir la limite arrière après l'octroi d'une touche d'un côté ou de l'autre.

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

Proposal 1

ANG

Motivation : *Increase of the saber bout duration; spectators will get some additional time for analysis and understanding of the things happening on the piste. Fencers will get an additional tactical maneuver.*

t.27

1. Should a competitor cross the rear limit of the piste completely — i.e. with both feet — a hit will be scored against him.
2. An athlete has the right to cross the rear limit one time with both feet in saber fencing. The referee will call him back to the piste in this case so that the forefoot would be on the two meter distance from the rear limit of the piste. The hit will be scored against the fencer if he will cross the rear limit right after coming to «en garde» position at the two meters distance. The fencer gets the right to cross the rear limit after the referee's decision to score the hit to any side.

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

The coaching council is in the process of testing these proposals

Motivation : *Diminuer le nombre d'attaques simultanées au sabre. Augmenter le nombre d'actions afin de rendre les matchs plus spectaculaires.*

t.17

2. Au fleuret et à l'épée, l'arbitre fait placer chacun des deux combattants de telle sorte que le pied avant soit à 2 mètres de la ligne médiane de la piste (donc derrière la ligne de "mise en garde").
3. Au sabre, l'arbitre fait placer chacun des deux combattants de telle sorte que le pied arrière soit à 2 mètres de la ligne médiane de la piste (donc devant la ligne de "mise en garde").

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

Motivation: *Decrease the number of simultaneous attacks in saber fencing. Increase the number of weapon actions in order to make matches more spectacular.*

t.17.2. In foil and epee fencing the Referee places each of the two competitors in such a way that the front foot of each is 2 meters from the center line of the piste (that is, behind the 'on-guard' lines).

t.17.3. In saber fencing The Referee places each of the two competitors in such a way that the back foot of each is 2 meters from the center line of the piste (that is, in front of the 'on-guard' lines).

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

The coaching council is in the process of testing these proposals

Propositions de la Fédération Suisse d'escrime
Swiss Fencing Federation Proposals
Propuestas de la Federación Suiza de Esgrima

Proposition 1

FRA

Motivation :

- ébranler le quasi-immobilisme d'un classement qui bouge très peu dans les 8 premiers, ce qui engendre que les pays rencontrent très souvent les mêmes adversaires.
- permettre aux « petites nations » d'entrer parfois dans le jeu
- 400 € pour 2 matchs de poule au minimum serait plus attractif

B) COUPE DU MONDE PAR EQUIPES JUNIOR ET SENIOR

Formule mixte – tour de poules de classement, tableau principal de 16 équipes pour une finale en élimination directe.

o.45

~~Outre les particularités suivantes, la compétition se déroulera selon les règles prévues pour les épreuves par équipes des Championnats du Monde juniors et seniors respectivement~~

Cette formule est applicable aux compétitions coupe du monde par équipes juniors et seniors.

0.46

~~1 Toutes les places jusqu'à la 16^e place seront disputées. A partir de la 17^e place, les équipes seront classées, par tour de tableau, par leur place d'entrée dans le tableau~~

~~2 Si une équipe ne commence pas une rencontre, elle sera disqualifiée de la compétition et ne recevra donc pas de points Coupe du Monde par équipe, sauf en cas de blessure ou maladie dûment constatée par le médecin.~~

1. Les compétitions se dérouleront en une journée.
2. La compétition comporte un tour de poules de classement composées de 3 équipes, suivi d'un tableau d'élimination directe complet à 16 équipes.
3. Parmi les équipes effectivement présentes, 2, 3 ou 4 des meilleures équipes du classement officiel de la FIE (cf. tableau des équipes exemptées) sont exemptées du tour de poule et entrent directement dans le tableau principal.
4. Après le tour de poule, les meilleures équipes classées sont qualifiées pour compléter le tableau d'élimination directe à 16 et prennent les places de 3 à 16, respectivement 4 à 16 ou 5 à 16, en fonction du nombre d'équipes exemptées au départ de la compétition.

5. Les 2, 3 ou 4 équipes exemptées prennent les places 1 et 2 ou 1, 2, 3 ou 1, 2, 3, 4 du tableau d'élimination directe par tirage au sort. Ce tirage au sort s'effectue après la fin du tour de poule.
6. Toutes les places jusqu'à la 16^e place seront disputées. A partir de la 17^e place, les équipes seront classées par le rang obtenu après le tour de poule et recevront le nombre de points prévus par la FIE.
7. Si une équipe ne commence pas une rencontre, elle sera disqualifiée de la compétition et ne recevra donc pas de points de coupe du Monde par équipe, sauf en cas de blessure ou maladie dûment constatée par le médecin.

o.47

- 1 ~~Les 4 premières équipes seront placées sur le tableau d'élimination directe selon le classement officiel actualisé par équipe (o.86) : on tirera au sort par groupes de 2 les places des autres équipes classées. Les équipes non classées occuperont les dernières places du tableau et seront départagées par un tirage au sort.~~
- 2 ~~Le tableau sera établi,~~ Les poules seront constituées en fonction du classement des équipes inscrites au plus tard une heure après la fin des quarts de finale de l'épreuve individuelle.

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

Proposal 1

ANG

Motivation:

- To dislodge the nearly immobile rankings of the top 8 teams, which currently lead teams to fencing the same opponents very frequently.
- To allow underdog nations a chance to fence on the main stage
- 400 € for a minimum of 2 pool matches would be more attractive

B) JUNIOR AND SENIOR WORLD CUP TEAM COMPETITION

Mixed format – one round of pools to determine ranking, followed by a main table of 16 for a direct elimination final.

o.45.

~~Apart from the following aspects, the competition is run in accordance with rules laid down for the team events in the juniors and Open World Championships.~~

This format would apply to both senior and junior team World Cups.

o.46.

~~1. All places in the table down to 16th place will be fought for. From 17th place onwards teams will be classified, within each round of the table, according to their initial seeding in the table.~~

~~2. If a team does not begin a match they will be disqualified from the competition and thus will not receive any World Team Cup points, unless this is because of an injury or illness, duly attested by the duty doctor.~~

8. Competitions would take place in one day.
9. The competition comprises of one round of pools of 3 teams to determine ranking, followed by a complete direct elimination table of 16 teams.
10. Among the teams present, 2, 3 or 4 of the highest FIE-ranked teams (cf. table of exempted teams) are to be exempted from the round of pools and entered directly into the main table.
11. After the round of pools, the highest ranked teams qualify to complete the table of 16 and take positions 3 through 16, respectively, or 4 through 16 or 5 through 16, in accordance with the number of exempted teams at the start of the competition.
12. The 2, 3 or 4 exempted teams will be assigned positions 1 and 2; 1, 2 and 3; or 1, 2, 3, 4 in the direct elimination table by drawing of lots. The drawing of lots is to occur after the round of pools.
13. Every position from 1 to 16 are to be fought for. From 17th place onwards, teams will be ranked according to their pool results and will receive the number of points previously determined by the FIE.
14. If a team does not begin a bout, it will be disqualified from the competition and will not receive any Team World Cup points, except in the case of injury or illness as determined by a medical professional.

o.47.

~~1. The first four teams will be placed in the direct elimination table according to the current official team ranking of the FIE (cf. o.86); the remaining ranked teams will be placed in the table by drawing of lots in pairs.~~

~~The teams that are not classified will occupy the last places in the table, and will be separated by drawing of lots.~~

~~2. The table will be drawn up~~ The pools will be drawn up based on the ranking of the teams entered, at the latest one hour after the quarter finals of the individual event.

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

NOT IN FAVOR

Ajustement du calcul du classement mondial individuel et par équipes dans l'année suivant les Jeux olympiques (o.83 et o.84)

Motivation : La participation aux Jeux olympiques est très limitée. Cependant, le facteur multiplicatif des points attribués aux Jeux olympiques est de 3 pour la compétition individuelle et de 2 pour la compétition par équipes (Coupe du monde : 1; Grand Prix : 1,5; et Championnats du Monde : 2). Ceci crée un déséquilibre dans le classement mondial durant l'année suivant les Jeux olympiques, qui n'est pas corrigé avant les prochains Championnat du monde, ce qui peut avoir des conséquences encore plus durables sur le classement.

Classement individuel

o.83

1) Classement officiel individuel de la F.I.E.

a) Principe

Le **classement officiel de la F.I.E.** tiendra compte des cinq meilleurs résultats d'épreuves de Coupe du Monde, Grand Prix **ou Satellite** auxquelles le tireur aura participé, tous continents confondus, plus les Championnats du Monde ~~ou les Jeux Olympiques~~ et les Championnats de zone.

b) Le classement officiel junior de la F.I.E. tiendra compte des **six** meilleurs résultats des épreuves de Coupe du Monde auxquelles le tireur aura participé, tous continents confondus, plus les Championnats du Monde et les Championnats de zone.

c) Pour les seniors et pour les juniors, le classement est actualisé de façon permanente. L'épreuve de l'année en cours supprime l'épreuve correspondante de l'année précédente et les points attribués lors d'une épreuve suppriment les points attribués **lors de** la même épreuve de la saison précédente. Si une épreuve n'a pas lieu pendant la saison en cours, les points acquis **lors** de la même épreuve de la saison précédente seront supprimés à la date anniversaire de cette épreuve.

Après les Jeux Olympiques jusqu'aux prochains Championnats du Monde, seuls les résultats des Championnats du Monde organisés pour les compétitions hors du programme olympique sont inclus dans le classement officiel de la FIE. Pour les autres armes, les points des Championnats du Monde de l'année précédente sont néanmoins annulés après chaque compétition olympique.

d) En cas d'égalité de points, le classement se fait en fonction du nombre de premières places, puis de deuxièmes places, etc. S'il y a égalité absolue, les tireurs sont classés ex aequo.

e) Après chaque épreuve prise en compte dans le classement, celui-ci est automatiquement mis à jour après vérification des résultats par la FIE.

f) Sauf dispositions particulières d'un règlement, le classement officiel ~~F.I.E.~~ FIE actualisé est

déterminant pour tous les classements, désignation des têtes de série, exemptions, etc...

2. Barème des points

a) Le classement sera fait sur la base du **pointage suivant**:

1ère place	32 points
2ème place	26 points
3èmes places ex aequo	20 points
5ème à 8ème places	14 points
9ème à 16ème places	8 points
17ème à 32ème places	4 points
33ème à 64ème places	2 points

b) Les points acquis lors d'une compétition de **Coupe du Monde individuelle** de catégorie A bénéficient d'un coefficient multiplicateur de 1.

c) Les **Grands Prix de la FIE et les Championnats de zone** bénéficient d'un coefficient multiplicateur de 1.5.

d) Le coefficient pour les épreuves individuelles des Championnats du Monde et Championnats du Monde juniors est de 2.5.

e) Le coefficient pour les épreuves individuelles des Jeux Olympiques est de ~~3~~ **2,5**. Aux **Jeux Olympiques**, le 4^{ème} reçoit ~~54~~ **45** points. **Les points des Jeux Olympiques sont uniquement utilisés pour calculer le vainqueur (tireur classé premier) de chaque classement officiel de la FIE senior à la fin des Jeux Olympiques.**

f) Seuls les tireurs ayant **effectivement participé** à un tableau d'élimination directe pourront recevoir des points.

3. Palmarès

Le vainqueur (tireur classé premier) de chaque classement officiel de la FIE **senior** sera proclamé à la fin des Championnats du Monde ou des Jeux Olympiques. **Le vainqueur** (tireur classé premier) de chaque classement officiel **junior** sera proclamé à la fin des Championnats du Monde juniors.

Classement par équipe

o.84

1 Classement officiel de la FIE par équipe

a) Principe

Le classement officiel de la FIE par équipe senior tiendra compte des **4 meilleurs résultats** d'une équipe aux épreuves de la Coupe du Monde senior, tous continents confondus, plus les Championnats du Monde ~~ou les Jeux Olympiques~~ et les Championnats de zone.

Le classement officiel de la FIE par équipes junior tiendra compte des **4 résultats** d'une équipe aux épreuves de la Coupe du Monde junior, tous continents confondus, plus les Championnats du Monde juniors par équipes et les Championnats de zone juniors par équipes.

b) Le classement officiel de la FIE par équipe est **actualisé d'une façon permanente** : l'épreuve de l'année en cours supprime l'épreuve correspondante de l'année précédente et les points attribués lors d'une épreuve suppriment les points attribués à la même épreuve de l'année précédente. Si une épreuve n'a pas lieu pendant la saison en cours, les points acquis à la même épreuve de la saison précédente seront supprimés à la date anniversaire de l'épreuve.

Après les Jeux Olympiques jusqu'aux prochains Championnats du Monde, seules les résultats des Championnats du Monde organisés pour les compétitions hors du programme olympique sont inclus dans le classement officiel de la FIE. Pour les autres armes, les points des Championnats du Monde de l'année précédente sont néanmoins annulés après chaque compétition olympique.

c) En **cas d'égalité de points** entre plusieurs équipes, les mêmes règles que pour le classement individuel (**o.83**) seront appliquées.

d) Sauf disposition particulière d'un règlement, le classement officiel FIE par équipe actualisé est **déterminant** pour tous les classements, désignations de tête de série, etc.

2. Barème des points par équipe

a) Le classement sera fait sur la base du **pointage suivant**:

1er 64 points
2ème 52 points
3ème 40 points
4ème 36 points
5ème 32 points
6ème 30 points
7ème 28 points
8ème 26 points
9ème 25 points
10ème 24 points
11ème 23 points
12ème 22 points
13ème 21 points
14ème 20 points
15ème 19 points
16ème 18 points
17ème à 32^{ème} 8 points

b) Pour les Championnats du Monde par équipe et les Jeux Olympiques par équipe, les points indiqués ci-dessus sont multipliés par deux. Les points des Jeux Olympiques sont **uniquement utilisés pour calculer le vainqueur (équipe classée première) de chaque classement officiel de la FIE senior à la fin des Jeux Olympiques.**

c) Les épreuves par équipes des Championnats de zone bénéficient d'un coefficient multiplicateur de 1.

3. Palmarès

Le vainqueur (équipe classée première) de chaque classement officiel de la FIE par équipes junior et senior sera proclamé à la fin des Championnats du Monde ou des Jeux Olympiques.

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

Adjustment of the calculation of the world ranking in individual and teams in the year after the Olympic Games (o.83 and o.84)

Motivation: The participation in the Olympic Games is very limited. At the same time, the multiplier of the points given at the Olympic Games is 3 in individual competition and 2 in team competitions (World Cup:1, Grand Prix 1,5, World Championships:2). This creates an imbalance in the world ranking in the year after the Olympics, which is not corrected until the next World Championships and may have consequences in the ranking even longer.

INDIVIDUAL WORLD RANKINGS

o.83.

1. Official FIE individual ranking

Principles

a) The official Open ranking of the FIE takes into account the best five results of the World Cup, Grand Prix or Satellite competitions in which the fencer has participated, irrespective of continent, plus the World Championships ~~or Olympic Games~~ and the Zonal Championships.

b) The official Junior ranking of the FIE takes into account the best six results of the World Cup competitions in which the fencer has participated, irrespective of continent, as well as the World Championships and the Zonal Championships.

c) For both Open and Junior rankings, the ranking is **kept permanently up to date**. The competition in the current year cancels out the corresponding competition of the previous year, and the points allocated for a competition cancel out the points attributed to the same competition in the previous season. If a competition does not take place in the current season, the points obtained at the same competition in the previous season are deleted on the anniversary of the competition.

From the end of the Olympic Games to the next World Championships, only the results of the World Championships organised for the events not within the Olympic programme are included in the official FIE ranking. For the other weapons, the World Championship points of the previous year will be annulled following their Olympic event.

d) In the event of equal points, the ranking is based on who has gained the most first places, then second places, etc.
If there is a complete tie, the fencers are ranked equal.

e) After each competition which is taken into account to establish the ranking, this is updated automatically after verification of the results by the FIE.

f) Except where special rules apply, the official up-to-date FIE ranking is the **deciding factor** for all rankings, seedings, exemptions, etc.

Scale of points

2. a) The ranking is based on the **following points system**:

1st place	32 points
2nd place	26 points
3rd place <i>ex aequo</i>	20 points
5th–8th places	14 points
9th–16th places	8 points
17th–32nd places	4 points
33rd–64th places	2 points

b) Points obtained in an **individual A Grade World Cup** competition are multiplied by a factor of 1 ~~as listed above~~.

c) Points obtained in a **Grand Prix** competition of the FIE and a **Zonal Championship** are multiplied by a factor of 1.5.

d) Points obtained in the individual events of the **Open World Championships** and in the **Junior World Championships** are multiplied by a factor of 2.5.

e) Points obtained in the individual events of the **Olympic Games** are multiplied by a factor of ~~3.0~~ 2,5. At the **Olympic Games**, **fourth** place is awarded ~~54~~ 45 points. ~~Points from the Olympic Games are to count only used to calculate the winner (first ranked fencer) of each senior official ranking of the FIE at the end of the Olympic Games.~~

f) Except where special rules apply, the official up-to-date FIE ranking is the **deciding factor** for all rankings, seedings, exemptions, etc.

Honours

3. The winner (first ranked fencer) of each **senior** official ranking of the FIE will be announced at the end of the Open World Championships or Olympic Games. **The winner** (first ranked fencer) of each **junior** official ranking will be announced at the end of the Junior World Championships.

TEAM WORLD RANKINGS

o.84.

1. Official team ranking of the FIE

Principle

a) The official team ranking of the FIE takes into account a team's **best four results** in the Team World Cup competitions, irrespective of continent, plus the Open World Championships ~~or the Olympic Games~~ and the Zonal Championships.

The official junior team ranking of the FIE takes into account a team's **four results** in the Junior Team World Cup competitions, irrespective of continent, plus the Junior Team World Championships and the Junior Team Zonal Championships.

b) The official team ranking of the FIE is **updated on a permanent basis**: the event which is held during the current year cancels out the corresponding event held the year before, just as the points obtained during the new event replace the points obtained the year before. If an event does not take place in the current season, the points obtained at the same event in the previous season are deleted on the anniversary of the event.

~~From the end of the Olympic Games to the next World Championships, only the results of the World Championships organised for the events not within the Olympic programme are to be~~

included in the official FIE ranking. For the other weapons, the previous year's World Championship points will be annulled following their Olympic event.

c) Should several teams **have the same points**, the same rules shall apply as for the official FIE individual ranking (cf. o.83).

d) Except where special rules apply, the updated official team ranking is the **deciding factor** for all rankings, seedings, etc.

2. Team scale of points

a) The ranking will be based on the following scale of points:

1st place	64 points	10th place	24 points
2nd place	52 points	11th place	23 points
3rd place	40 points	12th place	22 points
4th place	36 points	13th place	21 points
5th place	32 points	14th place	20 points
6th place	30 points	15th place	19 points
7th place	28 points	16th place	18 points
8th place	26 points	17th–32nd	8 points
9th place	25 points		

b) For the World Team Championships, [and Olympic Games team events](#), the points indicated above are multiplied by two. [Olympic Games points are only used to calculate the winner \(highest first ranked team\) of each official senior team ranking of the FIE following the Olympic Games.](#)

c) Points obtained in a Zonal Team Championship have a factor of 1.0.

3. Honours

The winner (first ranked team) of each official junior and senior team ranking of the FIE will be announced at the end of the ~~Open~~ World Championships or Olympic Games.

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

NOT IN FAVOR

Proposition 3

FRA

Mise en place d'un cycle pour le programme olympique, basé sur le principe de l'égalité des sexes et de l'égalité entre les différentes armes (o.48.1)

Motivation : La situation dans laquelle il y a dix médailles d'or attribuées à l'escrime aux Jeux olympiques perdure depuis 2004, et il n'y a aucune indication que ce nombre de médailles va augmenter. Jusqu'à ce jour, le Congrès a pris sa décision en ce qui concerne le programme olympique trois ans à l'avance (p. ex. en novembre 2013 pour les Jeux olympiques de Rio de 2016). C'est manifestement trop tard pour permettre aux athlètes et aux fédérations nationales de préparer et planifier leurs activités d'une manière structurée.

Par conséquent, il est souhaitable d'établir clairement dans nos règlements le cycle du programme olympique, afin d'assurer une stabilité et une équité entre les différents sexes et les différentes armes.

La fédération suédoise d'escrime propose de continuer le cycle appliqué lors des Jeux olympiques de Beijing, de Londres et de Rio de Janeiro.

Programme des épreuves

o.48

1. Le programme des épreuves d'escrime aux **Jeux Olympiques** comporte actuellement 10 épreuves. Tant que la situation ne permet pas d'organiser 12 épreuves, le programme des compétitions par équipes aux Jeux Olympiques varie de telle façon que chaque année olympique deux armes n'y figurent pas. Pour les armes ne figurant pas dans le programme olympique, la FIE organisera des Championnats du Monde.

Le cycle des compétitions par équipes sera :

Premiers Jeux Olympiques : Fleuret féminin, fleuret masculin, épée féminine, sabre masculin. (Au sabre féminin et à l'épée masculine, la FIE organisera des Championnats du Monde par équipe.)

Deuxièmes Jeux Olympiques : Fleuret féminin, épée masculine, sabre féminin, sabre masculin. (Au fleuret masculin et à l'épée féminine, la FIE organisera des Championnats du Monde par équipe.)

Troisième Jeux Olympiques : Fleuret masculin, épée masculine, épée féminine, sabre féminin. (Au fleuret féminin et au sabre masculin, la FIE organisera des Championnats du Monde par équipe.)

Tout changement du cycle ci-dessus ou du nombre des épreuves doit être approuvé par le Congrès.

Opinion du Conseil des entraîneurs :

Proposal 3

ANG

Establishment of a cycle for the Olympic programme based on the principle of gender equality and equality between the different weapons (o.48.1)

Motivation: The situation with 10 gold medals for fencing at the Olympic Games has now been a fact since 2004 and there is no indication of an increase in this respect. Up to this point, the Congress has taken the decision on the programme three years in advance (e.g. in November 2013 for the Olympic Games in Rio 2016). This is clearly too late to allow athletes and national federations to prepare and plan their activities in an orderly way.

It is therefore desirable to clearly establish in the rules the cycle of the Olympic programme in order to ensure stability and fairness between different genders and weapons.

The Swedish Fencing Federation proposes that the cycle implemented for the Olympic Games in Beijing, London and Rio de Janeiro is continued.

PROGRAMME OF COMPETITIONS

o.48. 1. The programme of fencing events at the **Olympic Games** currently comprises ten events. **Until such time when 12 events can be organised, the team competition programme of the Olympic Games will vary in such a way that each Olympic year two weapons shall not**

be present. For those weapons, the FIE will organise World Championships.

The competition cycle will be:

First Olympic Games: Women's foil, men's foil, women's épée, men's sabre. (In women's sabre and men's épée, the FIE will organise Team World Championships.)

Second Olympic Games: Women's foil, men's épée, women's sabre, men's sabre. (In men's foil and women's épée, the FIE will organise Team World Championships.)

Third Olympic Games: Men's foil, men's épée, women's épée, women's sabre. (In women's foil and men's sabre, the FIE will organise Team World Championships.)

Any change of the above cycle or in the number of events must be approved by the Congress.

Opinion of the Coaches Council :

NOT IN FAVOR
